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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of STARMANGALSUTRA PRIVATE LIMITED,

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of STARMANGALSUTRA PRIVATE
LIMITED (“the Company™), which comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025 and the Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Standalone Cash Flow Statement and
Standalone Statement of changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as
“Standalone Financial Statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("IND AS™) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2025, its profit (including other
comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)

specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilitics for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s
Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include
the consolidated financial statements, standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion
on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon. [n connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. I, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard,

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give true and fajr view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes of equity of
the company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes ma.mten . Bf
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the agsfe 5
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and a W
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appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the IND AS standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the IND AS standalone financial statements as a
whole are fiee from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional Jjudgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

» ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the IND AS Standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve coliusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

> Evalvate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation,

»  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the standalone financial information of business activities
within the company to express an opinion on the standalone financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the standalone financial statements of such entities.
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We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matiers that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March 2025 are the first financial statements
prepared subsequent to the conversion of the erstwhile Limited Liability Partnership (LLP), namely Starmangalsutra
LLP, into a Private Limited Company under the Companies Act, 2013. We were not the statutory auditors of the said
LLP for the preceding peried and have, therefore, relied upon the audited financial statements of the LLP as at 31%
May 2024, as audited by M/s Jain Kishor & Co (FRN:103921W), whose report dated 06® May, 2025 has been
furnished to us. The opening balances of the Private Limited Company have been taken based on the said audited
closing balances of the LLP. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor report) Order, 2020 (“The Order”) Issued by the Centrai Government of

India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give the “Annexure — A” statement on the matter specified in
paragraph 3 & 4 of the order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that;

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion proper books of account as requited by law have been kept by the company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books; except for the matters stated in the paragraph 2(i)(vi) below
on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

¢. The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Standalone Cash Flow Statement and Standalone Statement of changes in equity dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account,

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March 2025 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2025 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial repotting of the Company and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. Qur report
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expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal
financial controls over financial reporting.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i The company does not have any pending litigations, which would impact its financial position.

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses.

ifi.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

iv. (i). The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no finds (which are
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premifum or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall :

» directly or indirectly Iend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™)
®  provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(ii). The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or
entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Company shall:
e directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)

* provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(iii). Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circurstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (i) and (i} of Rule 11{e), as provided under d(i) and d(ii) above, contain any material
misstatement,

v.  Since the Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year, the question of commenting on
whether dividend declared or paid in accordance with the section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 does
not arise.

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software for
maintaining its books of account, which have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the
same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the respective software.

Further, for the periods where audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled and operated for the respective
accounting software, we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with
and the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requircments for record
retention.
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h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements
of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, no
remuneration was paid by the Company to its directors during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of
Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable.

UDIN: 25152425BMIESS9869

For VJSHAH & CO
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 109823wW

NIRAV M MALDE
(PARTNER)
Membership No. 152425

Place: Mumbai
Date; 27" May, 2025
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STARMANGALSUTRA PRIVATE LIMITED

Annexure “A” Anditers’ Report

Annexure referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading of “Report on Qther Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Aceounts of STARMANGALSUTRA PRIVATE
LIMITED (‘the company”) for the year ended 31st March, 2025.

i.  a. A. The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, inciuding quantitative details and
situations of Property, Plant and Equipment.

B. According to the information and explanations provided to us, the company does not have any intangible
assets. Therefore, reporting under clause 3(i}(a)(B) of the order is not applicable,

b.  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its Property, Plant and
Equipment by which all property, plant and equiptment are verified in a phased manner over a period of three
years. In accordance with this programme, certain property, plants and equipment were verified during the
year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

¢.  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records
of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than properties where the company is the
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) are held in the name of the
company.

d. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records
of the Company, the company has not revalued its Property, Plant & Equipment (including Right of Use
assets) and Intangible Assets or both during the year.

€. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records
of the Company, no proceedings are initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made
thereunder.

ii. Inrespect of Inventories:

2. As explained to us, the inventory has been physically verified by the management at regular intervals during
the year. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the coverage and
procedure of such verification by the Management is appropriate having regard to the size of the Company
and the nature of its operations. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of
inventories were noticed on such physical verification of inventories when compared with books of account.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records
of the Company, during the year, the Company has been sanctioned warking capital limits in excess of Rs.5
crores, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The Company has filed quarterly
returns or statements with such banks, which are in agreement with the books of account other than those as
set out in Note No.46 to the Financial Statements.

iil. a. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination of books and
record by us,

(A) The Company has not granted any loans or provided advances in the nature of loans or stood
pany y
guarantee or provided security to its subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates during the year.
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Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii)(a)(A) of the order is not applicable.

(B) The company has only granted unsecured loans or advances in the nature of loans to employees as
specified below:

Loans to Employees Amounts (Rs. In Lacs)
Aggregate amount granted during the vear 14.83
Balance outstanding at the balance sheet date 8.52

b. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination of books and
record by us, the terms and conditions of the grant of loans and advances in the nature of loans, as referred to
a (B) above, are not prima facie prejudicial to the interest of the company.

¢. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, in the case of secured or unsecured loans given, the repayment of principal and
payment of interest has not been stipulated. We are therefore, unable to make specific comments on the
regularity of repayment of principal and payment of interest.

d. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination of books and
record by us, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect of secured or unsecured loans
given.

¢. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, there is no loan granted which has fallen due during the year, which has been
renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to same parties.

f. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment,

iv.  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of records of
the Company, the Company has not provided any guarantee or security as specified under Sections 185 and
186 of the Act. In respect of the investments made and foans given by the Company, in our opinion the
provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act have been complied with.

V. The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public.
Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

vi.  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not prescribed the
maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the products manufactured by it (and/or
services provided by it). Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicabie.

vii.  Inrespect of Statutory Dues:

(a). According to the information & explanation given to us, the company was generally regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance,
Income-tax, Sales-tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other
statutory dues, as applicable to it, with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records
of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund,
Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory dues were in arrears as
at 31 March 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b). According to records examined by us and the information and explanation given to us, there are no
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undisputed amounts due in respect of income tax, sales tax, GST, excise duty, Employees Provident Fund,
Employees State Insurance Fund and other statutory dues as referred in sub clause (a) above.

i, According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of records of
the Company, there were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered or
disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(viii) of the order is not applicable to the company.

ix. (a). According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other borrowings or in
the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year.

(b). According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a willfill defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or government authority.

(¢). In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
applied for any term loans and accordingly, reporting under clause ix(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d). On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any
funds raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long term purposes by
the Company.

(e). According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
standalone financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from
any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures,
Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) of the order is not applicable.

(). According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report
that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries as
defined under the Companies Act, 2013. Further the Company does not hold any investment in any associate
or joint venture (as defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2025. Accordingly, clause
3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable,

X. (a). The Company has not raised any money’s by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

{b). The Company has not raised any money by way of preferential allotment/private placement of shares.
Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

xi. (2). Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information and
explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined in Standards on Auditing, we
report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of
the audit,

{b). According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under section 143¢12) of the Act
has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

(¢). According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no whistle-blower complaints
received by the Company during the year and up to the date of this report.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.
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xiii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is in compliance
with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, where applicable, for all transactions with the related
parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements
as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Xiv. Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, internal audit is not
applicable to the Company hence reporting under Clause (xiv)(a) and (b) of Order is not applicable.

XV. According to information and explanation given to us and on the basis of books of accounts examined by us,
the company has not entered into non-cash transactions with any of its directors or directors of its holding
company, subsidiary company or persons connected with such directors. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(xv) of the order is not applicable.

Xvi. The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,
Hence, reporting under clause (xvi)(a), (b), (c) and (d) of the Order is not applicable.

xvii.  The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the
immediately preceding financial year.

xvili.  There has been no resignation by the statutory auditors of the Company during the year. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the order is not applicable.

Xix. On the basis of the financial ratios (as disclosed in financials), ageing and expected dates of realization of
financial assets and payment of financial Habilities, other information accompanying the financial statements
and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date.

We, however state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state
that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give guarantee nor
any assurance that all liabilities falling due within the period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

XX. Based on the information and explanation given to us, provisions of section 135 is not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xx) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

UDIN: 25152425BMIESS9569

For VJSHAH & CO
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 109823W

NIRAV M. MALDE
(PARTNER)
Membership No. 152425
Place: Mumbai

Date : 27" May, 2025
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STARMANGALSUTRA PRIVATE LIMITED

Annexure “B” Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act™).

Opinion
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Starmangalsutra Private Limited (“the
Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the

Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31,
2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Qver
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of [ndia.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s pelicies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the
Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAL
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Finanecial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that

a) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company;

b) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and

¢) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

UDIN: 25152425BMIESS9869

For VJSHAH & CO
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 109823W

o

NIRAV M. MALDE
(PARTNER)
Membership No. 152425

Place: Mumbai
Date : 27t May, 2025



STARMANGALSUTRA PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN - U32111MH2024PTC425449

STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2025

(Amount ¥ in Lakhs)
Particulars Note No. 31'03:025
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ]
{a) Property, Plant and Eqmpment 3 179.93
| (b} Right-of-use asset L 4 803.59
| {c) Capital Work mProgress . e 5 20.06
| (d) Investment Property - -
| (e) ‘Goodwill -
| (f) Other Inta_ng1ble Assets -
| (&) Intanglble Assets under development -
| (h) Biological Assets other than bearer plants -
(i) !Financial Assets i
(i) Investments 6 1,268.01
i (11) Trade Receivables Filz -
| (ti) Loans _ o -
(1v) Others financial assets L 7 324.05
() Deferred tax assets (Net) il =
(k) ~ Other non current assets 8 93.15
SUB-TOTAL 2,688.80
CURRENT ASSETS
{a) Inventories 9 4,908.78
(b)_ Financial Assets T -
(i) Investments -
| (ii) Trade Receivables 10 6,482.63
(iti) Cash & Cash Equivalents 11 239.88
| (iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 12 1,347.00
(v) Loans 13 8.52
(v1) Other financial assets s 14 530
(;) Current Tax Assets (Net) -
(d) Other Current Assets 15 175.17
SUB-TOTAL 13,167.27
TOTAL ASSETS 15,856.07




STARMANGALSUTRA PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U32111MH2024PTC425449
STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2025

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES NOTE NO. 31'03:025
[EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
( ) _Equity Share cap:tal Y 16 8.99
{b) ‘Other Equity 17 9,754.42
SUB-TOTAL 9,763.42
LIABILITIES
NON—CURRENT LIABILITIES i
(a) Financial Liabilities
L (i) Borrowings I 2
(ia) Lease Liabilities .= 18 680.52
i . (11) Trade Payable -
(ii) Other Financial Liabilities ' x
(b) Long Term Provisions 19 6.07
i (cj Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 20 16.78
(d) " Other non-current habilities
SUB-TOTAL 703.38
[CURRENT LIABILITIES
i (a)  Financial Liabilities e
(1) Borrowings 21 4,975.15
~ (ia) Lease Liabilities B 22 137.88
(if) Trade payables N 23
| Trade Payables-Mlcro_and Small Enterprises i 0.03
I Trade Payables- Other than Micro and Small 0.13
| En&allagses '
(m) Other financial liabilities (other than those
24 14.52
_specified in item (c)) _—
(b) Other Current Liabilities 25 10.49
| (©) Short Term Provision 26 17.26
(d) 'Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 27 233.82
SUB-TOTAL 5,389.28
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 15,856.07
See accompanying notes to the financial statements 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Standalone IND AS Financial Statements

As per our report of even date

For V] SHAH & CO FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Chartered Accountants
FRN. : 109823W

MAHENDRA
NIRAV MALDE 2 CHAUHAN
(PARTNER) { DIRECTOR ) { DIRECTOR )
MEMBERSHIP NO. : 152425 DIN: 02138048 DIN: 02138084

PLACE : MUMBAI
DATE :27th May, 2025



STARMANGALSUTRA PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U321T1MH2024PT C425449
STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 315t MARCH, 2025
{(Amount ¥ in Lakhs except earning per share)

] Note No. 17.05.2024 -
Particulars 31.03.2025
L4

Continuing Operations
I Revenue From Operations 28 40,334.44
II Other Income 29 219.25
I1I Total Income (I+II) 40,553.69
IV Expenses i

(a) Cost of Material Consumed 30 41,936.09

(b) Purchase of Stock-in-trace -

(c) Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work in Progress and Stock in ” (3,645.12)
Trade

(d) Employee Benefits Expenses 32 276.98

(e) Finance Cost 33 28413

(f) Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 34 76.64

(g) Other Expenses 35 158.25
Total Expenses (IV) 39,086.97
V Profit Before Exceptional and Extraordinary Items and Tax (III-IV) 1,466.72
VI Exceptional Income,/ Expenses -
VII Profit Before Tax (V-VI) 1,466.72
VIII Tax Expenses 37 352.40

360.00

(1) Current tax
(2) Deferred tax (7.60)
(3) Short/ (Excess) Provision for Tax £

IX Profit After Tax from continuing operations (VII-VIII) 1,114.31
X Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
A Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
(i) Remeasurement of defined benefit plans 36.1 7.99
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (2.01)
B Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Fair valuation of Non-Trade Investments 36.2 81.99
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss | 1.10
Total of other comprehensive Income 89.07
Total Comprehensive Income for the period comprising Profit (Loss) and Other

- s 1,203.39
comprehensive Income for the period
XI Earnings Per Equity Share {Amount in ¥)
(a) Basic 38 1,994.55
(b) Diluted 38 1,994.55
See accompanying notes to the financial statements 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Standalone IND AS Financial Statements

As per our report of even date
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

For VJ SHAH & CO
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 109823W
L]
- '

MAHENDRA
NIRAV MALDE CHAUHAN
(PARTNER) (DIRECTOR )
MEMBERSHIFP NO. : 152425 DIN: 02138084
PLACE : MUMBAI

DATE : 27th May, 2025



a)

<)

d)

g)

h)

b)

STARMANGALSUTRA PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN - U32111MH2024PTC425449

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 315T MARCH, 2025

{Amount ¥ in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS (17.05.2024 - 31.03.20?_’;
|CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
'Net profit before Tax 1,466.72
Adjustment for Non-Cash and Non-operating Items
Add:  Depreciation 76.64
Provision for doubtful debts / Advances 10.75 | |
'Finance Costs 271.25 358.64
Less: :Intervst Income 3432 L
Gain on Sale of Investment 164.29
Dividend Received 20.64 219.25
'Operating profits before working capital changes (a+b-c) 1,606.11
_Changes in Working Capital & Operating Assets & liabilities
Add:  Decrease in Assets & Increase in Liabilities
.Other Current Liabilities 749 |
Other Current Financial Liabilities 14.52
Short Term Loans & Advances 435
Long Term Provisions 3.38 29.74
Less: :In::rrcasc in Asset;_&:z Decrease in Liabilities
Inventories | 3,593.41
Trade Receivables 5,102.14
‘Other Current Assets 125.89
Other Non Current Assets 78.71
_Other Current Financial Assets 5.30
Short Term Provisions 19.96
Trade Payables 15.33 8,940.75
_-Cash generated from operations (d+e-f) (7,304.90)
Less:  Taxes paid 246.98
NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATNG ACTIVITIES (g-h) (7,551.88)
CASH FL.OW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES d
Add: Interest Income 34.32 |
‘Sale of Investment 616.43
Dividend Received 20.64 671.39
Less:  Addition to Property, Plant and Equipment (Including WIP) 110.60
Investment in Fixed Deposit 1,597.00
:Security Deposits given during the year 74.05 1,781.64
NET CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (a-b) (1,110.25)




a)

b)

STARMANGAISUTRA PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN - U32111MH2024PT 425449

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 315T MARCH, 2025

(Amount ¥ in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS f17.(]5.2024 - 31.03.2025;
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Ed: Increase in Short Term Borrowings (Net) 2,009.05
Proceeds from Increase in share Capital(Net) 8,497.55 10,506.60
Less: Repalment 't of Long Term Borrowings (Net) 1,355.83
Repayment of principal portion of lease liabilities = 39.37 |
In_t_gz:est Expense Loy 271.25 1,666.46
;NET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (a-b) 8,820.14
]LNET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH N 178.01
Add; 'Cash & Cash Equivalent at the beginning of the year
I Cash on Hand i . 1.57
L Bank Balanice =0k 60.30 61.87
Less Cash & Cash Equivalent at the end of the year
\Cash on Hand 1.73
Bank Balance =, 238.15 239.88
Reconc:h_ahon of Cash and Cash Equivalents with the Balance Sheet
i " 'Cash & Cash Egmvalent at the end of the year {as per Note ‘12) 239.88
Less: |Bank Balances held as margin money against gurantees not considered as Cash
o= Iand Cash Equivalents -
“'Cash & Cash Equivalent at the end of the year 239.88
Note:

The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS -7}
“Statement of Cash Flow”.

As per our report of even date

For V] SHAH & CO
Chartered Accountanis
FRN: 109823W

NIRAV MALDE

(PARTNER)
MEMBERSHIFP NO. : 152425

PLACE : MUMBAI
DATE : 27th May, 2025

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

DIRECTOR )
DIN: (02138048

L]
MA@

CHAUHAN

{ DIRECTOR )
DIN: 02138084
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STARMANGALSUTRA PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

NOTE: 1
Corporate Informaticn

Starmangalsutra Private Limited (“The Company”) is engaged in the business of designing,
manufacturing and marketing of Gold Jewellery since 2020. In May 2024, the Company
transitioned from a Limited Liability Partnership (LLP) to a Private Limited Company. The
Company offers a wide variety of designs to suit the preferences of the end customer. They
provide an extensive range of designs and also use studded American diamonds and/or
colored gemstones in many of their jewellery products.

The Board of Directors approved the standalone financial statements for the year ended March
31, 2025 and authorised for issue on May 27, 2025.

NOTE: 2

Summary of basis of compliance, basis of preparation and presentation, critical accounting
estimates, assumptions and judgements and significant accounting policies

Statement of compliance:

Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed
under the Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 3 of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to ime and relevant provisions of the

Companies Act, 2013.

Accordingly, the Company has prepared these Standalone Financial Statements which comprise
the Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31
March 2025, the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2025 and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year ended as on that date, and accounting policies and other
explanatory information (together hereinafter referred to as ‘Standalone Financial Statements’ or

‘financial statements”).

2.1  Basis of preparation of financial statements

The Standalone financial statements of the company are prepared in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), under the historical cost convention on the accrual
basis as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), except for:

» Financial instruments - measured at fair value;

» Quoted Investments - measured at fair value;

» Plan assets under defined benefit plans - measured at fair value

>

In addition, the carrying values of recognized assets and liabilities, designated as
hedged items in fair value hedges that would otherwise be carried at cost, are adjusted
to record changes in the fair values attributable to the risks that are being hedged in
effective hedge relationship.
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STARMANGALSUTRA PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

Current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-
current classification.

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

» It is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the
Company’s normal operating cycle.

» Itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
> Ttis expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

> Tt is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to
settle a lability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

> All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
> Itis expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;
» Itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded

> Ttis due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or the Company does
not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting date. Terms of liability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its
classification.

» Al other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current only.

The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued
thereafter. Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly
issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting
standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

The statement of cash flows has been prepared under indirect method, whereby profit or
loss is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or
accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and items of income or
expense associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating,
investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated. The Company considers
all highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value to be cash equivalents.
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STARMANGALSUTRA PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

The Standalone Financial Statements have been presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which
is the Company’s functional currency. All financial information presented in INR has been
rounded off to the nearest rupee in lakhs, unless otherwise stated.

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the
Management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments
and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

This note provides an overview of the areas where there is a higher degree of judgment or
complexity. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgments is included
in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation.

Estimates and judgments are regularly revisited. Estimates are based on historical
experience and other factors, including futuristic reasonable information that may have a

financial impact on the company.

Following are the areas involving critical estimates and judgements:

s Measurement of defined benefit obligations - Note 40
¢ Recognition of Deferred tax assets/ liabilities - Note 20 and Note 39
o Current Tax Expenses and Current Tax Payable - Note 27 and Note 39

s Measurement and Valuation of Inventory - Note 9
Significant accounting policies

A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the
financial statements is as given below. These accounting policies have been applied
consistently to the period presented in the financial statements.

(A) Property, Plant and Equipment

The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price net of any trade
discounts and rebates, any import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently
recoverable from the tax authorities), any directly attributable expenditure on making the
asset ready for its intended use, including relevant borrowing costs for qualifying assets
and any expected costs of decommissioning. Expenditure incurred after the property,
plant and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, are
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which the costs are incurred.
Major shut-down and overhaul expenditure is capitalized as the activities undertaken
improve the economic benefits expected to arise from the asset.




STARMANGALSUTRA PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

It includes professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalized in
accordance with the Company’s accounting policy based on Ind AS 23 - Borrowing costs.
Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of PPE when completed and
ready for intended use. Property, plant and equipment except freehold land held for use
in the production, supply or administrative purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Property, plant and equipment which are not ready for intended use as on the date of
Balance Sheet are disclosed as “Capital work-in-progress”

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at
each balance sheet date is classified as capital advances under “Other Non-Current

Assets”

Subsequent expenditure and component accounting

Parts of an item of PPE having different useful lives and significant value and subsequent
expenditure on Property, Plant and Equipment arising on account of capital improvement
or other factors are accounted for as separate components only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted
for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance
are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation and useful life

Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis on the WDV method based on estimated
useful life prescribed under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 Depreciation is
provided based on useful life of the assets as prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies
Act, 2013.

Freehold land is not depreciated.

The Company reviews the residual value, useful lives and depreciation method annually
and, if expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a
change in accounting estimate on a prospective basis.

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the period of the lease agreement.

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant
and equipment as recognized in the financial statements on transition to ind AS,
measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of

transition.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.




STARMANGALSUTRA PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

Derecognition

An item of PPE is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.

(B) Capital Work in progress (‘{CWIP’) and Intangible assets under development

Projects under commissioning and other CWIP/ intangible assets under development are
carried at cost, comprising direct cost, related incidental expenses and aftributable

borrowing cost.

Subsequent expenditures relating to property, plant and equipment/intangible Assets are
capitalised only when it is probable that future economic benefit associated with these will
flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Advances given to acquire property, plant and equipment are recorded as non-current
assets and subsequently transferred to CWIP on acquisition of related assets.

(C) Impairment

At the end of each reporting year, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its
tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use
are tested for impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication, the asset

may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized immediately in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.




STARMANGALSUTRA PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

When there is indication that an impairment loss recognized for an asset in earlier
accounting periods no longer exists or may have decreased, such reversal of impairment
loss is recognized in the statement of profit and loss, to the extent the amount was
previously charged to the statement of profit and loss.

(D) Inventories
Raw materials
Raw materials, work in progress, iraded stock and finished goods are stated at the lower

of cost and net realizable value. Cost of raw materials and traded goods comprises cost of
purchases.

Work in progress and finished goods

Cost of work-in-progress and finished goods comprises direct materials, direct labour and
an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure. Fixed overheads
are allocated on the basis of production of finished goods. Cost of inventories also include
all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
Costs of purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net
realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Costs of inventories are valued at lower cost or net realizable. Net realizable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion
and costs necessary to make the sale.

(E} Revenue recognition

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when control of the products being sold is
transferred to the customer and when there are no longer any unfulfilled obligations. The
Company recognizes revenues on sale of products, net of discounts, sales incentives,
rebates granted, returns, sales taxes/GST and duties. Export incentives are recognized as
income as per the terms of the scheme in respect of the exports made and included as part

of other operating revenue.

Revenue from sales is recognized when control of the products has transferred, being
when the products are delivered to the customer, the customer has full discretion over the
channel and price to sell / consume the products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs when the
products have been shipped to the specific location, the risks of obsolescence and loss
have been transferred to the customer, and either the customer has accepted the products
in accordance with the sales contract or the acceptance provisions have lapsed.

Sale of services

Income from services rendered is recognized based on agreements/arrangements with the
customers as the service is performed and there are no unfulfilled obligations.




STARMANGALSUTRA PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

Dividend and interest income

Dividend inceme from investments is recognized when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment has been established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably). Interest
income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

{F} Income taxes

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s
taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to
unused tax losses. The company has decided to opt for lower income tax rate u/s 115BAA.
Accordingly, tax expenses have been calculated considering provisions of section 115BAA
of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs
from “profit before tax’ as reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss because of items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates and laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the Financial Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets
are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.




STARMANGALSUTRA PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit
or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are
recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in Other Comprehensive

Income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity
has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(G)  Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs, general or specific, that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
construction of qualifying assets is capitalized as part of such assets. A qualifying asset is
one that necessarily takes substantial period to get ready for intended use. All other
borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Company determines the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalization as the
actual borrowing costs incurred on that borrowing during the year less any interest
income earned on temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets, to the extent that an entity borrows funds specifically for the purpose
of obtaining a qualifying asset. In case if the Company borrows generally and uses the
funds for obtaining a qualifying asset, borrowing costs eligible for capitalization are
determined by applying a capitalization rate to the expenditures on that asset.

Borrowing cost includes exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to
the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the finance cost.

(H) Leases

As a Lessee
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the company, as lessee, has substantially

all the risks and rewards of ownership been classified as finance leases. Finance leases are
capitalized at the lease’s inception at the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, the
present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding rental obligations, net
of finance charges, are included in borrowings or other financial liabilities as appropriate.
Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is
charged to the statement of profit and loss over the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.
The gain/loss on derecognition of any lease asset/liability is routed through the profit
and loss account.




STARMANGALSUTRA PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not
transferred to the Company as lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments made
under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the
statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless the
payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate
for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases.

(I) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required
to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the

obligation.

Provisions for restructuring are recognized by the Company when it has developed a
detailed formal plan for restructuring and has raised a valid expectation in those affected
that the Company will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement the plan or
announcing its main features to those affected by it.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, it’s carrying amount is the present value
of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material). The
measurement of provision for restructuring includes only direct expenditures arising
from the restructuring, which are both necessarily entailed by the restructuring and not
associated with the ongoing activities of the Company.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed by way of a note to the financial statements when
there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises
from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

A contingent asset is not recognized but disclosed in the financial statements where an
inflow of economic benefit is probable.

(J) Employee benefits
Employee benefits include salaries, wages, contribution to provident fund, gratuity,

leave encashment towards un-availed leave, compensated absences, post-retirement
medical benefits and other terminal benefits.

Short-term employee benefits

Wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled
within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related
service are recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting
period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are
settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the

balance sheet.




STARMANGALSUTRA PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

Post-employment benefits Defined contribution plan

Employee Benefit under defined contribution plans comprises of Contributory provident
fund etc. is recognized based on the undiscounted amount of obligations of the
Company to contribute to the plan. The same is paid to a fund administered through a

separate frust.

Defined benefit plan

Defined benefit plans comprising of gratuity is recognized based on the present value of
defined benefit obligations which is computed using the projected unit credit method,
with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period.
These are accounted either as current employee cost or included in cost of assets as

permitted.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the
defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in the
employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other
comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of
changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan
amendments or curtailments are recognized immediately in profit or loss as past service
cost.

Short term employee benefits
Liabilities recognized in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the

undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related
service. Liabilities recognized in respect of other long-term employee benefits are
measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made
by the Company in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.

(K) Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when an entity becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through Statement of Profit and Loss (FVTPL)) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are recognized immediately in Statement
of Profit and Loss.

10




STARMANGALSUTRA PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

(L) Financial assets

Recognition and initial measurement

The Company initially recognizes loans and advances, deposits and debt securities
purchased on the date on which they originate. Purchases and sale of financial assets are
recognized on the trade date, which is the date on which the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value. In the case of financial assets not
recorded at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition of
financial assets are included therein.

Classification of financial assets and Subsequent Measurement

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified to be measured at -

» Amortized cost; or

» Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) - debt investment; or
» Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) - equity investment; or
> Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVIPL)

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions
and is not designated at FVIPL:

o The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to
collect contractual cash flows; and

o The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

A debt instrument is classified as FVTOCI only if it meets both of the following conditions
and is not recognised at FVTPL:

e The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding,.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as
at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the Other
Comprehensive Income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income,
impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the Statement of Profit
and Loss. On derecognition of the asset, camulative gain or loss previously recognized in
QCI is reclassified from the equity to Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest earned whilst
holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

11




STARMANGALSUTRA PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

All equity investments in scope of IND AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity
instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognized by an
acquirer in a business combination to which IND AS 103 applies are classified as at
FVTOCL For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election
to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The
Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is
made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. The non-current investment has been
recorded at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI).

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVIOCI, then all fair value
changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised in the OCL. There is no
recycling of the amounts from OCI to Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale of
investment. However, on sale/ disposal the Company may transfer the camulative gain or
loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured at fair value with
all changes recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income.

All other financial assets are classified as measured at FVIPL.

In addition, on initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at
FVTOCI as at FVIPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces and accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets at FVTOCI are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period,
with any gains and losses arising on remeasurement recognized in Other Comprehensive
Income. The net gain or loss recognized in Other Comprehensive Income incorporates any
dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the ‘other income’ line
item. Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recognised when:

o The Company’s right to receive the dividends is established,

« Itis probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividends will flow to
the entity,

e The dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and
the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

Impairment
The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognizing impairment loss on
financial assets measured at amortized cost, trade receivables, other contractual rights to

receive cash or other financial asset.

12




STARMANGALSUTRA PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Company expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original
effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or originated
credit-impaired financial assets). The Company estimates cash flows by considering all
contractual teims of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call
and similar options) through the expected life of that financial instrument.

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal
to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument
has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss
allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit
losses. 12-month expected credit losses are portion of the life-time expected credit losses
and represent the lifetime cash shortfalls that will result if default occurs within the 12
months after the reporting date and thus, are not cash shortfalls that are predicted over

the next 12 months.

If the Company measured loss allowance for a financial instrument at lifetime expected
credit loss model in the previous year but determines at the end of a reporting year that
the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition due to improvement
in credit quality as compared to the previous year, the Company again measures the loss
allowance based on 12-month expected credit losses.

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring
over the expected life of the financial instrument instead of the change in the amount of
expected credit losses. To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or
effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition.

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that
result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18, the
Company always measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected

credit losses.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade
receivables, the Company has used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109.
This expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes
into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking

information.

13
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Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

M) Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity
Debt and equity instruments issued by a company are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an

entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognized at the proceeds received, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or ‘FVTPL.

A Financial Liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading or it is a
derivative (that does not meet hedge accounting requirements) or it is designated as such
on initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:
» It has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

» On initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the
Company manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

» It is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at

FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

> Such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognifion
inconsistency that would otherwise arise.

» The financial lability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or
both, which is managed, and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Company’s documented risk management or investment strategy,
and information about the grouping is provided internally on that contract basis; or

» It forms part of a containing one or more embedded derivatives, and IND AS 109
permits the entire combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL in accordance with
IND AS109.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The net gain or loss
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss incorporates any interest paid on the
financial liability and is included in the ‘other gains and losses’ line item in the Statement

of Profit and Loss.

Other financial Iiabilities

Other financial liabilities (including borrowings and trade and other payables) are

subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
S




STARMANGALSUTRA PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled, or have expired. An exchange with a lender of debt
instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of
the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a
substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability (whether attributable
to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the
original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the consideration
paid and payable is recognized in profit or loss.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and
must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

(N) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and
short - term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject
to insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in
current liabilities in the balance sheet.

{O) Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issuance of new ordinary shares and share options and buyback of ordinary shares are
recognized as a deduction from Share Premium, net of any tax effects.

(P) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for treasury shares,
bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue to existing shareholders, share split and
reverse share split (consolidation of shares).

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit after tax after considering
the effect of interest and other financing costs or income (net of attributable taxes)
associated with dilutive potential equity shares by the weighted average number of equity
shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the weighted average
number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive
potential equity shares including the treasury shares held by the Company to satisfy the
exercise of the share options by the employees.
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STARMANGALSUTRA PRIVATE LIMITED

OTHER NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6
Non Current Investments® (Shares in Numbers & Amount ¥ in Lakhs)
31.03.2025
PARTICULARS ey T I— z

Non-Trade Investment measured at Fair Value through Othet
Comprehensive Income
In Equity Shares of Other Companies.
Quoted, Fully paid-up i
HDFC Bank Ltd. of Rs. 1 each 41,500 758.70
Tata Consultancy Services Litd. of Rs. 1 each 4,000 | 144.25
ICICI bank Ltd. of Rs. 2 each = r B 27,075 365.07

TOTAL 72,575 1,268.01
Aggregate Amount of Quoted Investments 1,068.01
Market value of Quoted Investments 1,268.01
Aggregate Amount of Unquoted Investments . -

which have been described in Note 21,

~ All the Non-Current Investments are pledged against secured short term borrowings details relating to




STARMANGALSUTRA PRIVATE LIMITED
OTHER NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE7
Non Current - Other Financial Assets (Amount ¥ in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS 31'03;2{'75
[Unsecured, considered good - - 1 ad i s
|Security Depaosits (at amortised cost) 2t 10 1| s ‘wll -
|Security Deposit against rental premises 1 74.05
[Fixed Deposits” B - - 1 250.00 |
d TOTAL 324.05
~ Fixed Deposits of Rs. 250 Lakhs (more than 12 months) given as collateral security.
Principal amount of these Fixed Deposits can be withdrawn or an equivalent amount can be
availed against such deposits by the Company at any point of time without prior notice or
penalty.
NOTE 8
Other Non-Current Assets (Amount % in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS 31'05;2095
[Prepaid Expenses || = 43.48
[Capital Advance i A 49.67
[ ~ TOTAL 93.15
NOTE ¢
Inventeries® (Amount ¥ in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS 31'0";‘2025
[Raw Materials _— -
Work in Progress 3,367.45
Finished Goods 1,541.33
I i TOTAL 4,908.78
“Valued at Cost or Net Realisable Value whichever is lower.
NOTE 10
Current Financial Assets - Trade Receivables (Amount ¥ in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS 31'"“’;2025
Trade Receivables considered good-Unsecured
From Others 6,495.66
Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Loss (13.03)
Trade Receivables credit Impaired
From Others =
Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Loss =
TOTAL 6,482.63

NOTE10.1
Trade Receivables Ageing schedule

As on 31.03.2025

Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars

‘Fotal

Less than 6 months | 6 months-1 year|1-2 yrs.§ 2-3 yrs.

More than 3

40150 | 603201 -

EUndi.szp_teg Trade Receivablesconsidered doubtful | e | 1
Disputed Trade Receivables considered good | -1 -1 1
Disputed Trade Receivables considered doubtful - = =

[Undisputed Trade receivables-considered good

Total Due

1,004.70

Undue - considered good
Undue - considered doubtful B
[Provision for douytﬁﬂ_ debts

 Total Trade Receivables

[5,490.95 |

(13.03)
6,452.63




STARMANGALSUTRA PRIVATE LIMITED

OTHER NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

N N s 1 g e e

NOTE 11
Current Financial Assets - Cash & Cash Equivalents (Amount ¥ in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS L
[Cash on Hand s - o
| -Cash B o 1.73
| -In Current Accounts i 238.15 |
TOTAL 239.88
L. —:
NOTE 12
Bank Balances Qther Than Above {Amount ¥ in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS 31‘”3:"25
Fixed Deposits” 13 1,347.00 |
TOTAL) 1,347.00]
~ Fixed Deposits of Rs. 1,347 Lakhs (less than 12 months) given as collateral security.
Principal amount of these Fixed Deposits can be withdrawn or an equivalent amount can be
availed against such deposits by the Company at any point of time without prior notice or
Ipenalty.
NOTE13
Current Financial Assets - Loans (Amount ¥ in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS 31.03;2025
Current Assets (at amortised cost) B
[Unsecured, considered good o] -

-Loan to Staff 8.52
i TOTAL s.sgl
NOTE 14
Other Current Financial Assets {Amount ¥ in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS 31'031'2'”5
Security Deposits {at amoxtised cost)
Security Deposit against rental premises -
Others 5.30
ﬁi s i ~ TOTAL 5.30)
|
NOTE 15
Cther Current Assets (Amount ¥ in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS L0
Advance To Creditors 6.15
GST Credit Receivable 125.25
fPrepaid Expenses = N 29.69
Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposits - il 14.07
TOTAL 175.17




STARMANGAJLSUTRA PRIVATE LIMITED

OTHER NOTES TQ STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 16
Equity Share capital {Amount ¥ in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS 3““";2“”

| (A) Authorised Share Capital
| 1 ]10,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each (Previous Year- Nil) 10.00
L 1D<D=0_
:(H! lssued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital

1 |89.931 Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each fully paid (Previous Year - Nil) | —= 8.99 |

8.99

NOTE 16,1
Reconciliation Of Shares Qutstanding At The Beginning And At The End Of The Year (Shares in Numbers & Amount € in Lakhs}
PARTICULARS gL
Nos. 1

| (A) |Equity Shares

1 [Shares Qutstanding at the beginning of the year -
| 2 |Additions during the year
| 1) [Shares issued on conversion of LLP to Pvt Ltd (Refer Note 16.8) 19,800 1.98
| ii} |Right issue of shares (Refer Note 16.5) 70,131 7.01
| 3 |Deductions during the vear - -
| 4 [Shares Outstanding at the end of the year 89,931 8.99

NOTE 16.2
Share Capital

[ {A) | The company has only 1 class of Equity shares.
(B) | Each holder of Equity shares is entitled fo one vote per share.

() |The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in the case of interim dividend,

In the event of Liquidation, the equity sharcholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion of their

D
(©) shareholding
NOTE 16.3
Details Of Shareholders Holding More Than 5% Shares In The Company {Shares in Numbers)
31,03.2025
RTICULAR:
ks o No, of Shares % of Holding
{A) |Equity Shares = =L ] — 4
1 [Sky Gold Lid 89,931 100.00
Total 89,931 100.00
NOTE 16.4
Aggregate number of bonus shares issued, shares issued for consideration other then cash during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date
[Aggregate No. of
Shates) for the year
PARTICULARS
—snded
31.03.2025
1_|Fully Paid up Equity Shares by way of Bonus {Shares in numbers) -
NOTE 16.5
Shares held by promoters as at 31st March 2025
Shares held by promoters at the end of the year % Change
Sn |Promoter Name No of Shares % of Lotal Shares | during the Year
1_|Sky Gold And Diamends Ltd 9,931 100% -
TOTAL §9,931 A00% 0.00%

NOTE 16.6
During the period of five years immediately preceeding the date as at which the Balance Sheet is prepared:

{a) No Class of Shares were alloted as fully paid up pursuant fo contract without payment being received in cash
(1) No Class of Shares were bought back by the company.

NOTE 16.7
(a) There are no calls unpaid
(b) There are no forfeited shares

NOTE 168
Issue on comversion of LLP to Pvt Lid

During the financial year 2024-25, the company issued 19,800 equity shares of face value Z10 each on conversion of LLF to Private Limited.

Right issue of shares
During the financial year 2024-25, the company issued 70,131 equity shares of face value T10 each under Right Issue.




STARMANGALSUTRA PRIVATE LIMITED
OTHER NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE17
Other Equity (Amount ¥ in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS 31.03?.2025
(I) |Securities Premium
Balance as the beginning of the year -
Add: Additions during the year | 8,492.86
Less : Utilised for Shares Issue expenses (2.33
Balance at the end of the year 8,490.53
 (II) |Other Comprehensive Income
Balance at the beginning of the year ! B -
Add: On Account of conversion of LLP to Pvt Litd 88.31 |
Add: Remeasurements of Net Defined Benefit Plans 5.98
Add: PBair valuation of Investments 83.09
Balance at the end of the year 177.39
(III) |Retained Earnings
Balance as the beginning of the year O -
Add: On Account of conversion of LLP to Pvt Ltd (27.81)
Add: Profits attributable to owners of the company 1,114.31
Less: Dividends paid -
Balance at the end of the year i B 1,086.50
TOTAL 9,754.42
NOTE17.1

Nature & Purpose of each Reserves under Other Equity

@

(b)

()

Securities premium reserve : Securities premium reserve is created due to premium on issue of shares. These
reserve is utilized in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. In current year it is utilised for

share issue expenses,

Items of Other Comprehensive Income
Remeasurements of Net Defined Benefit Plans ; Differences between the interest income on plan assets and the

return actually achieved, and any changes in the liabilities over the year due to changes in actuarial assumptions
or experience adjustments within the plans, are recognised in other comprehensive income and are adjusted to
retained earnings.

Fair valuation of investment : Non - current investments made by the company in quoted shares is recorded at
fair value and the Gain/(loss) on revaluation is recognised in other comprehensive income

Retained Earnings
Statement of Profit and Loss are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to general

reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders.

NOTE 18
Non Current - Financial Liabilities - Borrowings - Lease Liabilities (Amount ¥ in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS 31'03;;2025
1 _Present Value of Lease leig_atiorls {(at amortised cost) 2 680.52 |
B |(Refer Note No 47) .
B TOTAL 680.52
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NOTE 19
Non current - Long Term Provisions (Amount ¥ in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS AL
1 |Provision for Gratuity payable 6.07
| S P el ol T Trons 6.07
NOTE 20
Non current - Deferred Tax Liabilities (Nef) (Amount ¥ in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS 2 '031'2025
1 |Deferred Tax Liabilities in relation to Lgealll
@ Gam on fair valuatlon of mvestment e L I 28.60
o2 DL L=l S D, e 28.60
| 2 |Deferred Tax Assets in r relatlon to B g
(D) | ProPerty Plant and Eqmpment B S U 3.24
| (if) |Provision for EmEIO_Ye_GE_ Benefits n =l = ] 1.53
(i) | Pr0v1510n for Expected Credit Loss ol e il 4 3.28
(iv) A_Leas_e rentals A = Ll e i S 3.73
i ethers: 0 0 0 0 0.04
i | - B I f e 11.82
“[Net Deferred Tax Liabilites 16.78
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OT.

NOTE 21
Current - Financial Liabilities - Borrowings (Amount ¥ in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS SRAB
(A} |*Secured Borrowings :- (at amortised cost) o | - - |
| 1 |Loans Repayable on Demand From Banks i 1 |
{ 1 Working Cagita.’[ Facilities 1 4,975.15 |
| {B) iCurrent maturities of long term debt B B : 7_ e - ;
1 TOTAL 4,975.15
The Company has availed working capital demand loans from Yes Bank Ltd and Federal Bank
Ltd, in Multi Banking Arrangement. These loans are secured by first pari passu charge on entire
current assets, stock and hook debts, all movable fixed assets, charge by pledge on equity shares
of TCS , HDFC Bank and ICICI Bank, charge on Fixed Deposits and Personal Guarantee of the
Directors.
NOTE 22
Current - Financial Liabilities - Borrowings - Lease Liabilities (Amount ¥ in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS 31'03;2025
1 [Present Value of Lease Obligations (at amortised cost} 137.88
|(Refer Note No 47) s
1 TOTAL 137.88
NOTE 23
Current - Financial Liabilities - Trade payables (Amount T in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS L=
| (A) |Micro and Small Enterprises
| 1 |Trade Payables for Goods -
| 2 [Trade Payables for Expenses 0.03
1 Tl 3 0.03
(B) |Others . _
1 |Trade Payables for Goods 0.00
2 |Trade Payables for Expenses 0.13
I _ 0.13
| TOTAL 015
NOTE 23.1
Micro, Small And Medium Enterprises Have Been Identified By The Company On The Basis
Of The Information Available.
(Amount T in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS OB
(A) [Dues remaining unpaid as at 31st March B B
|Principal ] Lt - ] N 0.03
Interest on the above -

Interest paid in terms of Section16 of the act along with amount of
(B) |payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during -
theyear. e a
Principal paid beyond the appointed date -
|interest paid in terms of Section 16 of the act -

Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay on
payments made beyond the appointed day during the year

TFurther interest due and payable even in the 5ucceed§1g yearsT
(D) |until such date when the interest due as above ate actually paid tol -
1111e smail enterprises.

Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at 31st
®
March
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NOTE 23.2
Trade Payables ageing schedule
As on 31.03.2025 (Amount ¥ in Lakhs)
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of pa!.T‘eLn‘t"w g Total
Less than 1 yr. 1-2 yrs. 2-3 yrs.
[ G) MSME 0.03 - - 0.03
[ Others = -
| (i) Disputed dues- MSME - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues- Others =
| Total Due -~ 0.03
| MSME - Undue
| Others - Undue LI 0.13
Total 0.15
NOTE 24
Current - Financial Liabilities - Other Financial Liabilities (Amount ¥ in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS oA
| 1 [Interest Payable on Borrowings N 1252 |
I ~ TOTAL 14.52
NOTE 25
Current - Other Current Liabilities (Amount ¥ in Lakhs})
PARTICULARS 305,202
| 1 [Margin Agouritrﬁ_alance | i . 0.00
| 2 [Statutory Dues Payable - | - 930 |
| 3 JAdvance from Debtors i i 119
| B TOTAL 10.49
NOTE 26
Current - Short Term Provisions {Amount ¥ in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS 31'03;2025
| (A) |Provision for employee benefits ]
| 1 | -Provisionfor Gratuity =~ L il o 001 |
| 2 | -Salaries & Wages Payable | 7.29 |
(@) [Others [
| 1 | - Audit fees Payable o 4.80 |
| | - Outstanding Expenses =l 1 5.16
| i TOTAL 17.26
NOTE 27
Current Tax Liabilities (Net) {Amount ¥ in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS 31.{)3%2025
| (A) |Provision for Statutory Liabilities U [ i ]
| 1 | -Provisicn for Tax (Net of Taxes paid) | n 233.82 |
i TOTAL 233.82
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NOTE 28
Revenue From Operations (Amount ¥ in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS 31'03;2025
(A) |Revenue From Sale of Jewellery®
1 |Domestic Sales 40,300.59
2 |Export Sales -
40,300.59
(B) |Revenue From Sale of Services
1 |Labour Charges 33.26
2 |Hall marking charges 0.59
33.85
TOTAL 40,334.44

*Sales for the year ended 31st March 2025 are net of Goods and Service Tax (G5T)

NOTE 29
Other Income {Amount ¥ in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS 31'03?'2025
1 |Dividend Income 20.64
2 |Interest Income 34.32
3 |Capital Gain on sale of Investments 164.29
TOTAL 219.25
NOTE 30
Cost of Material Consumed {Amount ¥ in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS 31'022025
| (A) |Raw Materials = i ral || |
1] QBEMngétgck o A h i _ 5171
2 Add : Purchased during | theyear s ! 41,870.49 |
[ 3 | Add: Consumables = - gal | ) 1375 |
| 4| Add : Labour Charges Paid b R | h - 014
} 5 |Less: Closing Stock - (B a -
vl N 5 - TOTAL 41,936.09
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NOTE 31
Changes In Inventories Of Finished Goods, Work In Progress
And Stock In Trade (Amount ¥ in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS 313‘1'2025
| (A) |Finished Goods
| 1 [Opening Stock i il 1,022.30
| 2 |Closing Stock 1,541.33
(=0 (519.03)
| (B) {Work in Progress L
| 1 |Opening Stock 241.36
| 2 |Closing Stock 3,367.45
= 4 iy (3,126.09)
B " TOTAL (3,645.12)
NOTE 32
Employee Benefits Expenses (Amount ¥ in Lakhs}
PARTICULARS 31'03;2025
| (A) |Salaries and wages 8
1 | -Salaries, Wages & Bonus o= o 254.75
| (B) |Contribution to provident and other funds
| 1 | -Contribution to PF, ESIC and MLWF 10.92
| 2 | -Provision for gratuity 3.37
| (C) |Staff welfare expenses
| 1 | -Staff Welfare 7.95
] S s TOTAL 276.98
NOTE 33
Finance Cost (Amount ¥ in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS 31'03;2025
| (A) |Interest expense
| 1 | - Intereston Working Capital Loans 260.62
| | 260.62
| (B) |Other borrowing costs
o -Bank charges 12.71
| 2 | -Other Expenses 0.17
12.88
;@) Interest on Lease Finance 10.63
| 10.63
TOTAL 284.13
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NOTE 34
Depreciation And Amortisation Expenses {Amount X in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS 31.03;202'5
1 |Depreciation on plant, property and equipment 34.11
2 |Depreciation on Right -of- use Asset uA. 1 - 42,53 |
il i e ~ TOTAL 76.61
NOTE 35
Other Expenses (Amount ¥ in Lalkhs)
PARTICULARS 31'03;2025
1 JAuditors' Remuneration 3.50
2 {Advertisement expense 0.89 |
3 ]Business Promotion expenses i 0.54
| 4 [Commission Expense B el 12,57
5 |JExhibition Expenses S 18.25
| 6 |JFactory Expenses 14.50
7 |Hallmarking Charges i 7.83
8 |interest on Income Tax Liability n - 12.00 |
9 |Other Expenses 11.69
| 10 |Packing Materials B i 1.29
11 |Power and Fuel 7 13.87
12 [Professional Fees 13.33
| 13 |Provision for bad and doubtful debts 10.75
| 14 |Lease Rentals B e 373
| 15 |Registration Fees 4.90
| 16 |Repairs & Maintainence 5.68
| 17 |Security Charges i gl 15.50
| 18 |Transport expenses = 5.30
| 19 |Travelling expenses B 213
| T g a ~ TOTAL 158.25
NOTE 35.1
Payments to Auditors {Amount ¥ in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS 31'03?'2025
| (A) JAs an Auditor 5.
| 1 [Statutory Audit Fees ke - 3.50
| 2 |IncomeTax B 1.50
| 3 |Certification and Other Services ) 0.20
~ TOTAL 5.20

~ [(Excluding GST)
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NOTE 36.1
Other Comprehensive Income ~ Items That Will Not Be
Reclassified To Profit And Loss (Amount T in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS 31'0:;'2025
| 1 ]JRemeasurement of Defined Benefit Plan L 799 |
| TOTAL 7.99
NOTE 36.2
Other Comprehensive Income ~ Items That Will Be
Reclassified To Profit And Loss {Amount ¥ in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS 31'0‘:2025
| 1 [Fair Value of Investment in equity shares pa | | B 81.99 |
Fo TOTAL 81.99
NOTE 37
Income Tax Expenses (Amount ¥ in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS 31'02;2025
1 [Current Tax 1 360.00 |
| 2 |Deferred Tax 1 (7.60) |
| 3 |Short Excess Provision for Tax =
_|Total Tax Expenses 352.40
NOTE 38
Earning Per Equity Shares (EPS) (Amount ¥ in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS 31'05;2025
| (A) |Face Value per Equity Share 10.00
| (B) |Basic Earning Per Share (Rs.)
i Net Profit after Tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 1114.31
|~ JAttributable to Equity Shareholders (Rs.) Bt - i
» Adjusted weighted average number of equity shares 55.868
| |outstanding (No.) for calculating Basic EPS i
| 3 |BasicEPS(Rs.) 1,994.55
: (B} |Diluted Earning Per Share (Rs.) i
1 Net Profit after Tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 111431
|~ |Atiributable to Equity Shareholders (Rs.) . o
2 Adjusted weighted average number of equity shares 55.868
|outstanding (No.) for calculating Diluted EPS 4
3 {Diluted EPS (Rs.) 1,994.55
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NOTE 39

Income Tax

(A) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) {Amount 2 in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS 31‘03;'2025

1 [Opening Balance N -

| 2 |Add : On account of conversion of LLP to Pvt Ltd 120.79 |
3 |Add: Current Tax Provision for the : year A 360.00

TRy Less Taxes Paid (246 981

15N Short/ (Excess) Provision for Tax -
| 6 [Closing Balance -t n - 233.52

The closing balance of current tax liability is net of advance tax and tax deducted at source.

(B) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net} {Amount ¥ in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS 2B
1 |Opening Balance L= o _—
| 2 JAdd: Onaccount of conversion ion of LLP to Pvt Ltd 2347 |
| 3 |Add/Less: Deferred Tax Charge/(Credit) to Statement of P&L | (7.60) |
4 |Add/Less: Deferred Tax Charge/{Credif) to Statement of OCI 0.91
5 16.78

i :Closing Balance

{C) Summary of Income Tax Expenses

(Amount ¥ in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS = '03;2”15
| 1 |Current Tax B it - 360.00
| 2 |Deferred Tax (7.60)
| 3 ] Short/(Excess) Provision for Tax -
i |Total Tax Expenses 1 1 i 352.40
{D) Movement in Deferred Tax Assets & Liabilities {Amount ¥ in Lakhs)
Charge/{Credit) to Statement] Charge/(Credit) to
PARTICULARS of P&L oC1
31.03.2025 31.03.2025
| 1 |Property Plant & Equipments and Intangible Assets — [N B29] =il
2 |Fair Value of Non Current Investmenw Financial Assets = 2. [: (1.10)]
| 3] Prov151on for Employee Benefits 0851 2.01 ]
| 4 Eromglgn for Expected Credit Loss B | @271 I =R
| 5 |Lease Rental i - I i [0 -]
| 6 |Interest unwinding on security deposit (0.01) -
! | Total 7 B {7.60) 0.91
{E)  Taxation {Amount ¥ in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS LBAB
| |The income tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:
| 1 [Profit Before Tax ( Before Exceptional ltems) 1,466.72
| |applicable Tax Rate {in %) 'y 25.17%
i 2 :_Eompuﬁ Tax ExEnsg el B T 369.14
: 3 ;_Aad gs) Tax Effect of: K __ e
| |Expenses Disallowed 29.34
|Additional Allowang (net) (20.62)
| Jincome taxable at lower rate a (17.86)
gl [ B (9.13)
= -
4 1 | Current tax Pruvision 360.01
5 |Effective Tax Rate (in %) 24.55%
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Note 40
Defined Benefit Plans

The Company participates in a number of defined contribution plans on behalf of relevant personnel. Any expense
recognised in relation to these schemes represents the value of contributions payable during the period by the
Company at rates specified by the rules of those plans. The only amounts included in the balance sheet are those
relating to the prior months contributions that were not due to be paid until after the end of the reporting period.

The major defined contribution plans operated by the Company are as below:

a) Provident fund

In accordance with the Employee’s Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 eligible employees of the
Company are entitled to receive benefits in respect of provident fund, a defined contribution plan, in which both
employees and the Company make monthly contributions at a specified percentage of the covered employees’ salary.
The contributions, as specified under the law, are made to the provident fund administered and managed by
Government of India. The Company has no further obligations under the fund managed by the GOl beyond its monthly
contributions which are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period they are incurred. The benefits are
paid to employees on their retirement or resignation from the Company.

(Amount ¥ in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS 31-03%2025
A) |Employers contribution to Provident Fund 10.35
ployer ou Proy une S T

b) Gratuity

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, an unfunded defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible
employees. The plan provides for lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or
on termination of the employment of an amount equivalent to 15 days salary, as applicable, payable for each completed
year of service, without any payment ceiling. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. The Company
accounts for the liability for gratuity benefits payable in the future based on an actuarial valuation. The most recent
actuarial valuation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation was carried out at March 31, 2025 by an
independent actuary. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past
service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method.

(A) Recongiliation of Opening and Closing balances of Defined

Benefit Obligation (DBO) (Amount ¥ in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS 3"03?'2025
| 1 |Defined Benefit obligation at beginning of year 9.65
| 2 JCurrent Service Cost hg L 3.74
| 3 JPast Service Cost i ol -
| 4 |interest Cost i B ) 0.68
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Change in

5 ] , . 0.32
|~ |Financial Assumptions

6 |Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Experience (8.31)
| 7 |Benefits paid B =

8 |Defined Benefit obligation at year end 6.08
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{B) Reconciliation of Fair Value of Plan Assets

{Amount T in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

31.03.2025

1 |Fair Value of Plan Assets at start of thy of the year
|Contributions by Emploler

|Benefits Paid
i Interest Income on Plan Assets

Re-measurements

W w[rq

|on the net defined benefit liability/ {asset)
| {Fair Value of Plan Assets at end of the year
JActual Return on Plan Assets
Expected Emplover Contributions for the com.mg year

OG\I‘G\ o™

Return on plan assets excluding amount included in net interest|

{C) Amount recognized in Balance Sheet

(Amount ¥ in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

31.03.2025

L4

Present Value of DBO

Fair value of Plan assets

L.lablhty/ (Asset) recognise ed in the Balance Sheet
Funded Status [Surplus/ (] (Deﬂth Al
| Of which, Short term Liabili
Expenenc:e Adjustment on Plan Liabilities: {Gain) / Loss

= K I AR

=)

08|

6.08]
0.01]

(6.08)|
(8.31)

(D) Expenses recognised during the year

{Amount ¥ in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

31.03.2025

T

| Current Service Cost

Past Service Cost

) Net Interest Cost

Expenses recogmsed nP&L

WG R e

3.74

0.68 |
4.42

(E) Expenses recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCT)

{Amount ¥ in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

31.03.2025

¥

Balance at start of year (Loss)/ Gain

1 Actuanal (Loss)/ Gain from experience over the past year

] Re-measu.rements on Plan Assets

RN e

_fon the net defined benefit liability/ (asset)
5 IBalance at end of year (Loss)/ Gain

| Actuarial (Loss) / Gain from changes in financial assumg_hons ]

[Return on Plan assets, excluding amount 1t included in net interest |

032)
831}

{F) Actuarial Assumptions

PARTICULARS

31.03.2025

3

1 |Salary Growth Rate
2 |Discount Rate

3 |Net Interest Rate on Net DBO/ (Assets)
4 [withdrawal Rate
5

6

_Mortahty
Expected weighted average remaining working life

7% p.a.

6.4% p.a.

7% p.a.

15% p.a.
IALM 2012-14 (Ult.)

5.5 years
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{G) Percentage Break-down of Total Plan Assets

PARTICULARS LB
1 |Investment Funds with Insurance Company v =
|Of which, UnitLinked 0.0% 1
__|Of which, Traditional/ Non-Unit Linked 0.0% |
2 |Cash and cash equivalents g 0.0% |
3 ]Total 0.0%
{H) Movement in Surplus/ (Deficit) (Amount ¥ in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS OB
1 [Surplus/ (Deficit) at start of year _ (9:69)]
2 |Current Service Cost ol | To ~ (3.74)]
3 |Past Service Cost =]
4 |Net Interest on net DBO (0.68)
5 |Re-measurements gain/ (loss) - 7.99]
6 |Contributions a o i - |
7 |Surplus/ (Deficit) at end of year (6.08)
NOTE 41
Related party transactions
(A) List Of Related Parties Where Control Exists And Relationships:
PARTICULARS RELATIONSHIP
1 |Darshan Chauhan Director
2 |Mangesh Chauhan Director
3 |Mahendra Chauhan (from 04/09/2024) Director
4 |Sky Gold and Diamonds Limited Holding Company
5 |Sitaare Gold & Diamonds Limited Company under common control
6 |Sparkling Chains Private Limited Company under common control
(B) Transactions with related parties (Amount T in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS 31'03!'2025
: () ‘:With Key Managerial Personnel
| 1 JLoan Received B i L
{M - Darshan Chauhan 309.00
] - Mangesh Chauhan 871.55
| 2 |Loan Repaid - L i
| - Darshan Chauhan 939.92
| - Mangesh Chauhan T — 1,596.46

Note: The transactions with related parties are made in the normal course of business and on terms equivalent to those

that prevail in arm’s length transactions.

(C) _ Balance at the end of year (Amount  in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS 31.03?.2025

| @) |LoanPayable
| - Darshan Chauhan
| - Mangesh Chauhan
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NOTE: 42
Financial instruments

Fair values

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless
of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes in to
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is
determined on such a basis.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into
Level 1, Level 2 or Level 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurements in its entirety, which are described as follows:

» Level 1: inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date.

> Level 2: inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

» Level 3: inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade
payables, bank overdrafts and other current liabilities approximate their carrying amounts
largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the
instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other
than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

e Long-term fixed-rate and variable-rate receivables/borrowings are evaluated by the
Company based on parameters such as interest rates, specific country risk factors,
individual creditworthiness of the customer and the risk characteristics of the financed
project. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken into account for the expected
credit losses of these receivables.

e The fair values of the quoted notes and bonds are based on price quotations at the
reporting date. The fair value of unquoted instruments, loans from banks and other
financial liabilities, obligations under finance leases, as well as other non-current
financial liabilities is estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates currently
available for debt on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. In addition to
being sensitive to a reasonably possible change in the forecast cash flows or the
discount rate, the fair value of the equity instruments is also sensitive to a reasonably
possible change in the growth rates. Management regularly assesses a range of
reasonably possible alternatives for those significant unobservable inputs and
determines their impact on the total fair value.

16
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e The fair values of the Company’s interest-bearing borrowings and loans are
determined by using DCF method using discount rate that reflects the issuer’s
borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period.

NOTE: 43
Financial risk management objectives and policies:

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and
other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s
operations and to provide guarantees to support its operations. The Company’s principal
financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents
that derive directly from its operations. The Company is exposed to market risk, credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the management of
these risks providing an assurance that the Company’s financial risk activities are
governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified,
measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. It
is the Company’s policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes may be
undertaken. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks, which are summarized below.

(A) Financial risk management

The management of the company is responsible for overseeing the Risk Management
Framework for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management policies.
The risk management policies are established to ensure timely identification and
evaluation of risks, setting acceptable risk thresholds, identifying, and mapping
controls against these risks, monitor the risks and their limits, improve risk awareness
and transparency. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to
reflect changes in the market conditions and the Company’s activities to provide
reliable information to the Management and the Board to evaluate the adequacy of the
risk management framework in relation to the risk faced by the Company.

The risk management policies aim to mitigate the following risks arising from the
financial instruments:

= Market risk
»  Credit risk; and
= Liquidity risk

(B) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in the market prices. The Company is exposed in the
ordinary course of its business to risks related to changes in foreign currency exchange
rates, commodity prices and interest rates.

The Company seeks to minimize the effects of these risks by using derivative financial
instruments to hedge risk exposures. The use of financial derivatives is governed by
the Company’s policies approved by the Board of Directors, which provide written
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principles on foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, the use of financial
derivatives and non-derivative financial instruments, and the investment of excess
liquidity. Compliance with policies and exposure limits is reviewed by the
Management and the internal auditors on a continuous basis. The Company does not
enter into or trade financial instruments, including derivatives for speculative
purposes.

(C) Foreign currency risk management
The Company’s functional currency is Indian Rupees (INR). The Company undertakes
transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposure to exchange
rate fluctuations arise. Volatility in exchange rates affects the Company’s revenue from
export markets and the costs of imports, primarily in relation to raw materials. The
Company is exposed to exchange rate risk under its trade and debt portfolio.

Adverse movements in the exchange rate between the Rupee and any relevant foreign
currency results in increase in the Company’s overall debt position in Rupee terms
without the Company having incurred additional debt and favourable movements in
the exchange rates will conversely result in reduction in the Company’s receivables in
foreign currency. In order to hedge exchange rate risk, the Company has a policy to
hedge cash flows up to a specific tenure using forward exchange contracts. In respect
of imports and other payables, the Company hedges its payables as when the
exposure arises. Short term exposures are hedged progressively based on their
maturity.

All hedging activities are carried out in accordance with the Company’s internal risk
management policies, as approved by the Board of Directors, and in accordance with
the applicable regulations where the Company operates. The company has entered
into currency swap transaction during the year.

(D) Credit risk management:
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual
obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. Credit risk encompasses both,
the direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as
concentration risks. The Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with
creditworthy counterparties, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from

defaults.

Company’s credit risk arises principally from the trade receivables, loans, cash & cash
equivalents and financial guarantees.

Trade receivables
Customer credit risk is managed centrally by the Company and subject to established

policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit
quality of a customer is assessed based on an extensive credit rating scorecard and
individual credit limits defined in accordance with the assessment.
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STARMANGALSUTRA PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

Trade receivables consist of many customers spread across geographical areas with no
significant concentration of credit risk. The outstanding trade receivables are regularly
monitored, and appropriate action is taken for collection of overdue receivables.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for
major clients. In addition, many minor recefvables are grouped into homogenous
groups and assessed for impairment collectively. The calculation is based on ongoing
customer interactions and management estimate of its realization.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables as of the reporting date is as follows:

(Rs. In lakhs)
Ageing of trade receivables As at March 31, 2025
Within the credit period 5490.95
0 - 180 days past due 401.50
More than 180 days past due 603.20
Total Trade Receivables 6,495.66
Reconciliation of loss allowance provision for Trade Receivables:
(Rs. In lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31,2025
Balance as at the beginning of the year -
On Conversion of LLP to Private Limited 2.28
Impairment losses recognized in the year based on lifetime 10.75
expected credit losses
Amounts written off during the year as uncollectible -
Amounts reversed during the year -
Amounts recovered during the year =

13.03

Balance at the end of the year

Cash and cash equivalents

Credit risks from balances with banks and financial institutions are managed in

accordance with the Company policy.

(E) Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk refers to the risk of financial distress or extraordinary high financing
costs arising due to shortage of liquid funds in a situation where business conditions
unexpectedly deteriorate and requiring financing. The Company requires funds both
for short-term operational needs as well as for long-term capital expenditure growth
projects. The Company generates sufficient cash flow for operations, which together
with the available cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments provide
liquidity in the short-term and long- term. The Company has established an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the
Company’s short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management
requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves,
banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast
and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and

liabilities.
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Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

The table below summarizes the maturity profiles of the company’s financial liabilities

based on contractual undiscounted payments:
Year ended 31t March 2025 (Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars On Lessthan | 3tol2 1to5 >5 years Total
Demand | 3 months | months years

Borrowings 4,975.15 = - = - 4975.15
(Other than
Lease
Liabilities)

Lease - 33.16 104.72 680.52 - 818.40
Liabilities

Trade - 015 - - - 0.15
Payables

Total 4975.15 3331 104.72 680.52 - 5793.70 |

Collateral
The Company has pledged part of its trade receivables, inventories, short-term

investments, cash and cash equivalents and all current assets to fulfil certain collateral
requirements for the banking facilities extended to the Company. There is an
obligation to return the securities to the Company once these banking facilities are
surrendered.

Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity
capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders
of the parent. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to
maximize the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and adjusts in light of changes in
economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company
monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus
net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and
borrowings, less cash, and cash equivalents, excluding discontinued operations.

The Company monitors its capital using gearing ratio, which is net debt divided to
total equity. Net debt includes, interest bearing loans and borrowings less cash and
cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents and current
investments. Company’s gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period is as follows:
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(Amount Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars ‘ 31.03.2025
Long Term Borrowings -
Current maturities of long-term debt -
Short Term Borrowings 4,975.15
Less: Cash and Cash Equivalent (239.88)
Less: Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent (1,347.00)
Less: Equity shares pledged (1,268.01)
| Net Debt 2,120.26
Total Equity 9,763.42
Capital and Net Debt 11,883.68
Gearing Ratio 17.84%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst
other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-
bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in
meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and
borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-
bearing loans and borrowing in the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31st March, 2025.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance
sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is
measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these
models arz taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not
feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements
include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.
Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of
financial instruments.
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STARMANGALSUTRA PRIVATE LIMITED
OTHER NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 45
Financial Instruments
(A) Accounting Classification and Fair Value {Amount ¥ in Lakhs)
As at 31st March 2025
Financial Assets/ Financial Liabilities
FVTOCI Amortised Cost

| () |Financial Assets N Il I = |
| 1 {Non Current Investments - | . 126801 | =)
| 2 |Trade Receivables i - 6,482.63
| 3 |Cash & Cash Equivalents -1 0 239.88 |

4 |Bank balances other than (3) above 1 - L 1,347.00
[ 5 JLoans I ik - = 852
| 6 |Other financial assets i = 1 s o 32934 |
(i1} |Financial Liabilities i Il i ]

1 |Borrowings 7 5 il 2| | e i 4,975.15 |
| 2 |Lease Liabilities | ca lf 518.40 |

3 |Trade Payable | - 0.16 |
| 4 |Other Financial Laibilities i -_I_ 14,52 |

The Company has disclosed financial instruments such as cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade
receivables, loans, Borrowings and trade payables at carrying value because their carrying amounts are a reascnable
approximation of the fair values due to their short-term nature.

(B} Fair Value Measurements hierarchy {Amount ¥ in Lakhs)
As at 31st March 2025
iy, : A 2 Significant
Financial Assets / Financial Liabilities Quoted Price in Active | Significant Observable Unobservable
Market Inputs Inputs
{Level 1) (Level 2) (Deg e
(i) | Financial Assets
| 1 | Non Current Investments i L - 1,268.01 = =

NOTE 46
Security of Net Current Assets against borrowings
Reconciliation between Net Current Assels as per Quarterly statement filed with the Bank and Current Assels as per Books of accounts

The company has been sanctioned working capitel limits in excess of 3 crores Rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial Instituions on the basis of Secutiy
of Current Assets. The amount of net current assets reported in the financial statements differ from the amount submitted to the bank by (Rs.173.05/- lakhs),
32.07/- Lakhs, 90.09 Lakhs and 222.31/- lakhs as at June, 2024, Septembet, 2024, December, 2024 and March, 2025 respectively. These differences are on
account of data submitted to the bank from provisional finacial statement subject to pending finalization.

NOTE 47
Leases

The Company adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and applied the standard to the lease contracts using the modified retrospective method. Consequently, the
Company recorded the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and the right of use asset at
value equal to the lease liability subject to the adjustments for prepayments and accruals. The weighted average incremental borrowing rate of 9% has been
applied to lease Habilities recognised in the Balance Sheet at the date of initial application. Interest on lease liabilities is Z 10.63 Lakhs for the year.

The Company has lease contracts for Factory premise rented in Navi Mumbai. They have a lease term of 5 years.

The Company’s obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor’s itle to the leased asset. The Company is restricted from assigning and subleasing
the leased assets and some contracts require the Company to maintain premises in good state. The lease contract include extension and termination
options which are further discussed below.

The Company applies the ‘short-term lease’ recognition exemptions for leases whose term is 12 months or less.

Terms of Cancellation and Escalation

The Leases are cancellable by giving one month notice by either parties and these does not carries any escalation.




STARMANGALSUTRA PRIVATE LIMITED

OTHER NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I N L L A AN N e e e

{A) Leases as lessee

(i) The movement in Lease liabilities during the year

(Amount ¥ in Lakhs)

Particulars 31.03?.2025
|Opening Balance = = -
Additions on account of ¢ conversmn of LLP to Pvt Ltd | 153.27
_|Additions du:mg the year il i —r 4 704.51
Derecogmsed during the year pi - | [ =
Finance costs incurred during the year d 10.63
|Payments of Lease Liabilities B (50.00
Closing Balance 818.40
{ii) The carrying value of the Rights-of-use and depreciation charged duriilg the year : (Amount ¥ in Lakhs)
Particulars 31'03:025
[Opening Balance |- 1| - - |
| Additions on account of conversion of LLP to Pyt Ltd B 141.61 |
| Additions durmg the year | 704.51 |
_Lease Expired/ Retn'erd i =8
|Depreciation charged dunng the year i B 42.53
Closing ¢ Balance 803.5%
{iii) Amount Recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss Account during the Year {Amount ¥ in Lakhs}
Particulars 31'03%
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets o 5 N Al _ 42.53 ]
Interest expense on lease Liabiiities i il N 10. 63
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses) 373
TOTAL 56.55
{iv) Amounts recognised in statement of cash flows {Amount ¥ in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.0?;.2025
|Total Cash outflow for Leases =5 1 s - T 39.37
TOTAL) 39.37
(v) Maturity analysis of lease liabilities (Amount ¥ in Lakhs)
particatas ETE
|Maturity Analysis of contractual undiscounted cash flows -
|Less than one year ™ i [ 13788
|One to five years N 680.52 |
| [More than five years. B e
[ Total undiscounted Lease Llablhty §18.40
(vi) Balances of Lease Liabilities (Amount ¥ in Lakhs)
Particulars 31'0";'2025
|Non Current Lease Liability 680.52
Current Lease Liability 137.88
818.40

[Total Lease Liability




STARMANGALSUTRA PRIVATE LIMITED
OTHER NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 48
The Company has a process whereby periodically all long term contracts (including derivative contracts) are assessed for material

foreseeable losses. At the year end, the Company has reviewed and there are no long term contracts for which there are any
material foreseeable losses. The Company has ensured that adequate provision as required under any law /accounting standards
for material foreseeable losses on derivative contracts has been made in the books of accounts.

NOTE 49

Disclosure Of Transactions With Struck Off Companies

The Company did not have any material transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or
section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956 during the financial year.

NOTE 50

No transactions to report against the following disclosure requirments as notified by MCA pursuant to amended schedule ITI

(2) Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency

{b) Benami Property held under Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder

(<) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies

(d) Relating to borrowed funds:

1. Wilful defaulter

i, Utilisation of borrowed funds & share premium

iii. Discrepancy in utilisation of borrowings

(€) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(fes), including foreign entities
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of

the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(f) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Group shall:

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party {(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(if) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(2) The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant

provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

NOTE 51

The Company was incorporated as a Private Limited Company on 17th May, 2024 under the Companies Act, 2013, upon
conversion from the erstwhile Starmangalsutra LLP, a Limited Liability Partnership registered under the LLP Act, 2008. The
conversion has been carried out in accordance with the provisions of Section 366 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Authorised
to Register) Rules, 2014 and relevant applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Pursuant to the conversion, all assets and liabilities of the LLP as on the date of conversion have been transferred to the Company
and the same have been incorporated in the books of account of the Company as the opening balances.

Since this is the first financial year of the Company and there were no comparative figures for the previous year, the financial
staternents have been prepared for the period from 17th May, 2024 to 31st March, 2025, and accordingly, previous year's figures

are not applicable and have not been presented.
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